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WASHINGTON bC 20246 

RELEASED FEE3 16 1973 

The Honorable Henry S Reuss 
Chairman, Subcommittee on Conservation and 

Natural Resource s 
Committee on Government Operations 
House of Representatives 

Dear Mr Chalrman 

This letter 1s m further response to your letter of August 3, 
1972, In which you requested our advlce on the steps taken by the 
General Accounting Offlce (GAO) and the Department of Justlce to 
insure that any claim agamst a coal operator arising under the 
Federal Coal Mme Health and Safety Act of 1969 (30 U S C 801) 1s 
offset agamst any sum owed him by the Unlted States The offset 
procedure was provided for In the Federal Claims Collection Stand- 
ards (4 C F R 102.3) Issued Jointly by the Department of Justlce and 
GAO, pursuant to authority xn the Federal Claims Collection Act of 
1966 (31 U S C 952) 

In our report ‘*Improvements Needed m the Assessment and 
Collection of Penaltle s --Federal Coal Mme Health and Safety Act of 
1969” (B-170686, July 5, 1972), we concluded that the Federal Claims 
Collection Act and the lmplementmg standards were applicable to the 
collection of civil penalties under the Federal Coal Mine Health and 
Safety Act of 1969 

The Federal Claims Collection Standards (4 C F R 102 3) con- 
tain the followmg provlslon relating to the offset of claams against sums 
owed to a creditor 

Collections by offset ~111 be undertaken admmlstratlvely on 
claims which are llquldated [determlned by agreement or 
lltlgatlon] or certam In amount m every Instance In which 
this IS feasible * * * Appropriate use should be made. of 
the cooperative efforts of other agencies In effectmg col- 
lections by offset * * * and all agencies are enJoined to 
cooperate m this endeavor. 



The act and Its lmplementmg standards place in the adminlstra- 
tlve agencies the reaponslbrllty for collecting claims resultmg from 
their activities, including the use of an offset procedure. Therefore, 
neither the Department of Justlce nor GAO IS responsible for mitiatmg 
offset action on claims arlszng from penaltres assessed by the Bureau 
of Mines under the Federal Coal Mme Health and Safety Act of 1969. 

Offlclale of the Department of the Interror’s Office of the Sollcl- 
tor, who have responslblllty for legal matters mvolvmg the Federal 
Coal Mine Health and Safety Act of 1969, informed us m August 1972 
that the offset procedure was not used because they doubted that it 
could be used prior to a Judgment by the court enforcing collection. 

They said that this opinion was based on the grounds that (1) the 
enforcement action provided for in the act1 is mandatory on the part of 
the Secretary and therefore he cannot bypass this statutory requirement 
by offsetting beforehand and (2) the act authorizes the court m any en- 
forcement action to consider and determine the relevant issues and 
enforce, modify, or set aside the clvll penalty assessed by the Secre- 

tary. 

Because of the Joint responsibilltres of GAO and the Department 
of Justice under the Federal Claims Collection Act, we requested the 
views of the Attorney General regarding the appropriateness of using 
the offset procedure prior to a court Judgment In its reply dated 
November 15, 1972, the Department of Justxe concluded that the off- 
set procedure prescribed by the Federal Claims Collection Standards 
should be applied to claims arising under the Federal Coal Mine 
Health and Safety Act of 1969. 

1 
For clvll penaltles not paid wlthm the prescribed time, the Secretary 
is required to file a petition for enforcement m any appropriate dls- 
tract court of the United States. 
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In our opinion, the offset procedure provided for in the Federal 
Claims Collectron Standards can and should be applied by the Bureau 
of Mines to the collectron of clvll penaltles assessed under the Fed- 
eral Coal Mine Health and Safety Act of 1969 prior to entry of a 
judgment by the court. 

h accordance with mstructlons from your office, we are not 
furnsshlng a copy of tks report to the Secretary of the Interior. We 
understand that you will make the report available to km. We do not 
plan to dastrlbute this report further unless you agree or publicly 
announce its contents. 

Sincerely your 6, 

Comptroller General 
of the United States 
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